Questions Part 2 - GTO Solicitation 										May 16, 2012
		

	Number
	Category
	Document
	Reference 
	Title
	Question/Comment
	Response

	001
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section L
	Instructions to Offerors – Page limitations
	Specifically, the question is whether the Key Personnel Qualification Matrices (KPQMs) are included in the page count limitation of 100 pages. A question was asked during the last Qs and As (Q&A# 136), but the response focused on the second part of the question and not whether the KPQMs were included in the page count. Therefore, we ask for clarification as to whether the KPQMs are included in the page limitations, and if so, [the Offeror] respectfully requests that GSA considers excluding the KPQMs from the page limitation found in Section L.9.1.
	The new, all inclusive page limitation is now 125 pages per the revised TOR.  Some items are specifically excluded from that page count in the revision, but KPQMs are still included within that limitation.




	002
	Reserved
	
	
	
	Reserved
	Reserved

	003
	Space
	PWS
	PWS 3.7.1 
	Network Operations Center
	During the open conversation period [in] a discussion … concerning the NOC and availability of space and sent a follow-up question as to what [was] meant by "contiguous space".  [The conversation dealt with the fact that] space would not be provided under GTO but also suggested GSA might be "considering contiguous space").  Can you … define what [was] meant by "contiguous space" in our conversation last September?
	Since that period of time (September 2011) the requirements have been clarified.  The PWS clearly states that that GSA will not provide space for the EIOC, which encompasses the current NOC.   Please see PWS 3.7.1 Enterprise Infrastructure Operations Monitoring Support, 3.7.1.1 Constraint #1.


	004
	Key Personnel Qualifications
	
	H.2
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	There is a significant time commitment to move from ITIL v3 Foundation to ITIL v3 Expert.  Advanced ITIL certifications are usually held by QA/Process Leads and in general Hardware Leads are certified at the Foundation level. ITIL v3 Expert Certification requires a minimum 22 credits obtained from taking Foundation and Intermediate courses. 
The following lists the details for achieving ITIL v3 certifications:
· Foundation Hours: 2 credits, 18 hours of instruction (3 days), 18.75 hours of study, 1 exam
· Intermediate Hours: 17 credits minimum
· Lifecycle: 3 credits each course, 21 hours of instruction (4 days of instruction per class), 21 hours of study per course, 1 exam 
· Service Capability: 4 credits each course, 30 hours of instruction (5 days of instruction per class), 12 hours of study per course, 1 exam 
· Managing Across the Lifecycle (MALC): 5 credits, 30 hours of instruction, 28 hours of study, 1 exam
· Expert: 22 credits obtained total
· An average of 28 business days of classes must be taken and nearly 100 hours of study to satisfy the ITIL v3 Expert Certification.
· Foundation (2 credits) = 3 days
· Intermediate, 4 classes (16 credits) = 20 days
· MALC (5 credits) = 5 days 
Considering the full-time requirements as outlined in the TOR for the Lead Hardware Program Manager, would the Government please consider modifying the requirement to ITIL v3 Foundation Certification?  Please clarify.
	No. The requirement remains as stated.  TOR Section H.2 states “All Key Personnel require Project Management Institute (PMI) certification as Project Management Professionals (PMP), and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. Key personnel with the exception of the Task Order Program Manager will have 6 months post award to provide documentation of ITIL Foundation Certification and 12 months post award to provide documentation of PMP certification.” 


	005
	
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3
Item 5
	Work Product/ Deliverable
	In PWS Section 3.3.3, page 16, item number 5: Lists as a deliverable: the delivery of an image.  
Did the government intend to list this deliverable in section 3.2.4 as a work product/deliverable of Client User Services?  Please clarify.
	The standard image is a Client User Services deliverable. The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification.


	006
	
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3 
Item 6.
	Work Product/
Deliverable
	In PWS Section 3.3.3, page 16, item number 6 lists as a deliverable the probe and response guide.  
Did the government intend to list this deliverable in section 8.1.1.3 (Security and support services)?  Please clarify.
	The Probe & Response requirement has been eliminated from Section 3.3.1.

	007
	
	PWS
	Section 7.1.1 through 7.1.3
	Enterprise Architecture Support
	In PWS Section 7.1.1 – 7.1.3, page 37, the Government describes desired outcomes, constraints, and work products deliverables for Enterprise Architecture Support.
1. What percentage of the existing architecture is documented? What percentage is in the tool?
1. What processes are in place to review architecture with users/stakeholders? 
1. Does GSA follow the Federal Enterprise Architecture (FEA) Consolidated Reference Model (CRM) or some other EA framework?  Please clarify.
1. What is the level of effort associated with the monthly update to the EA repository, and to whom is it reported? 
1. What specific items are reported, such as changes in the CRM or milestone updates?
	a. Please note that in October 2011 the GSA Enterprise Architecture program switched from IBM System Architect to Troux.  
Following is a list of documented components of the GSA Enterprise Architecture.  Where noted, the Enterprise Architecture is considered to be the authoritative source for the documented information:
· Operational Concept – High level operational concept diagram describing the agency’s mission, vision, services and stakeholders.  Complete and Authoritative.
· Strategic Business Capabilities – Description of the high level strategy for GSA.  Complete and Authoritative.
· Business Functions – Description of the capabilities and services performed by GSA.  Complete to the 3rd level decomposition and Authoritative.
· Data – Taxonomy of GSA’s information domains.  Incomplete and authoritative
· Application Inventory – Inventory of systems and applications for GSA’s documented IT Investments (OMB 53/300). Does not include desktop and mobile software.  Does not include hardware assets.  Complete and authoritative.
· IT Standards – Inventory of IT standards and specifications for GSA’s IT investments (OMB 53/300).  Complete and authoritative.
· IT Investments – Inventory of IT Investments reported to OMB.
Further GSA has developed a Segment Architectures for Enterprise IT, Knowledge Management, Acquisition and Human Resources.  The following components of the segment architectures are considered complete and authoritative:
· Operational Concept – High level operational concept diagram describing the segment’s mission, vision, services, and stakeholders.
· Strategies – Identification of business and IT strategies for the segment.
· Business Functions – Decomposition of segment business functions below the GSA Enterprise Architecture Level.
For the Enterprise IT segment architecture the following additional architecture components are complete and authoritative:
· Three-year initiative and project plan including sequencing roadmap.
· OCIO Organization roles and responsibilities matrix
All the information listed above is captured in the GSA EA repository.  The GSA EA continues to evolve, the latest information about artifact status can be found on the EA portal at ea.gsa.gov.

b. The following processes are in place for reviewing the architecture:
•  As part of the annual update to the GSA Enterprise Architecture April submission to OMB.
•  As part of the Performance Management Process (PMP) and IT Investment Capital Planning – SELECT process annual review of new and existing IT investments.
•  As part of the annual refresh of the IT Strategic Business Plan.

c. GSA follows an expanded form of the Common Approach to EA (Attachment 47 Common Approach to Federal EA.pdf).  The expanded form is documented in the 2012 GSA Enterprise Architecture (Attachment 48 GSA_Enterprise_Modernization_RoadMap.docx).

d. Based on the PWS and list of Work Products / Deliverables, the following GTO activities should be integrated with the EA repository:
•  Asset Inventory Reports
•  Infrastructure Workflows
•  Draft IT Business Cases
•  Market Research
•  Feasibility Studies
•  Technology Recommendations
Integration with the EA Repository should be largely automated.   Further, the GTO contractor should expect to provide technical and subject matter expertise for strategic planning and architecture initiatives such as the annual IT Strategic Business Plan Update and target IT architecture analyses.   The table attached (Attachment 49 GSA EA Table of Expected Level of Effort.docx) provides a qualitative assessment of expected levels of effort.  Quantitative estimates should be based upon the program management plan developed by the contractor.

e. Information reported must be consistent with the Common Approach and GSA metamodel framework (Attachment 47).  Reported results will be high level and strategic in nature in accordance with GSA’s EA program plans.


	008
	
	TOR
	Section L.9.1
	Instructions to Offerors – Proposals Due Date
	TOR, Section L.9.1, page L-10, states: “To be considered, contractors must submit the information described below on or before 3:00 PM Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) Monday June 11, 2012 by electronic submission.”  
Amendment 2 says the Part 2 proposal is due at 9:00am on June 11. However, the TOR says the proposal is due by 3:00pm on June 11.  Please clarify the delivery date and time for the Part 2 proposal.
	Submissions must be received by 3:00 PM Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) Monday June 11, 2012.  



	009
	
	TOR
	Section M.3.2
	Evaluation Factors
	TOR, Section M.3.2, page M-6, Technical Evaluation Factors table no longer shows weighting for the Part 2 Technical submission. 
Would the Government please provide the weighting for this submission?
	The relative weighting is found in TOR Section M.3.2 and referencing the table states “There are three non-price Factors for Part 2, which are listed in the table below.  The Factors are provided in descending order of importance, with Technical Approach being the most important, Management Approach slightly less important than Technical Approach, and Past Performance considerably less important than the other two Factors.”

	010
	Staffing Plan
	Attachment I
	
	Instructions to Offerors – Page Limitations
	Attachment I, Project Staffing Plan
1. The project staffing plan requires staffing for all personnel to include a list of their qualifications for the base period and each option period. With a list of personnel this size the page requirements for this plan will be significant. Would the Government please consider removing the Staffing Plan from the page restriction?
1. The project staffing plan table font size is different from the font size requirement for tables in the TOR. Are we allowed to use a smaller font size for this table?  Please clarify
	GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.
a) We require all staffing, however we have changed the table significantly in that it now only requests the base period of performance and does not require qualifications (just labor category information), among other changes.  We believe this (and the removal of non-evaluative materials such as TOC) will allow the staffing plan to fit within the 125 page limit.
In lieu of providing all five years in the project staffing plan table, please provide a discussion in Part 2B-2, Staffing Plan, Staffing Considerations and Techniques that projects and explains your anticipated increases and decreases in support over the follow-on years.  (See L.9.3.2.1)
b) b. The font size has been standardized to match the Section L instructions: “Font size for all submissions throughout the process must be no smaller than 11pt with the exception of the Plans or within charts, where the Offeror may use a 10pt font.  Graphics may use an 8pt font. Page limits assume single-sided 8/12 x 11 (letter size) pages and any foldouts are restricted to not greater than 11x17.  Foldouts will count as 2 pages.”

	011
	Hardware
	PWS
	
	Inventory
	General - To help ensure correct staffing by location can the Government provide detailed equipment inventories by GSA location, make, model, and quantity?
	Multiple inventories with site information have already been provided in the As-Is Environment Attachments.


	012
	Software
	
	
	Government Furnished Equipment - 
	General - Does GSA have a password reset tool in use today that will become GFE at award? If yes, can you provide usage data?
	GSA has a password reset portal that will be provided as GFP. Portal usage is low since 78% of GSA users login with the GSA Access card. The Password Manager Pro (PMP) system is a Common Off-the-Shelf (COTS) web based application produced by ManageEngine Corp. PMP delivers the application via a server system based on the Windows 2008 R2. The back end database containing the information is via MySQL v5.1.50. The hardware platform is via a GSA’s standard VM infrastructure, this application requires 1 VM.  The system currently manages around 2000 server/service accounts.  
User passwords are currently managed via standard MS Active Directory.

	013
	Service Desk
	
	
	IT Service Desk - Statistics
	First round submission questions and answers - The response to question 301 addressed the call split for the OCFO service desk with email, Web and phone. Can the Government provide this type percent split for the IT Service desk?
	Currently it is Phone: 83%, Email:  17%, and Web: 0%.  The Email percentage may increase over time with the use of Chatter because of the capability of submitting an email ticket using the #askit feature.


	014
	Work Products/ 
Deliverables
	TOR
	F.5
	Architecture Management Plan
	F.5 Deliverables, Table 1: GTO Work Products;
Table 2 GTO Deliverables - Tables 1 and 2 include respectively a work product W‑37 (PWS 7.1.3) and a deliverable D -07 (PWS 3.6.1.3) with the title Architecture Management Plan. Is it the Government’s intention for the contractor to produce two products? If yes please provide guidance on content or other factor that distinguishes between them.
	The Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.


	015
	Work Products/ 
Deliverables
	TOR
	F.5
L.7
	Architecture Management Plan
	F.5 Deliverables, 
Table 2 GTO Deliverables; L.7 Submission of Offers –
Deliverable D -07 Architecture Management Plan has a due date of Initial Draft with Proposal. Section L.7 does not include the Architecture Management Plan as part of the proposal submission requirements. Does the Government require an Architecture Management Plan initial draft with the proposal? If so where and what is the page count allocation?
	The Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.

	016
	Instructions
	TOR
	L.9.1
	Instructions to Offerors – Page Limitations & Size
	L.9.1 - The General Proposal instructions specify that page limits assume single-sided 8.5 X 11 (letter size) pages and foldout being restricted to legal size (8.5 X 14), with foldouts counting as 2 pages. Given that the foldout equivalent of letter size would be 11x17, request that the TOR instructions be modified accordingly.
	This is acceptable.  The instructions have been revised.

	017
	Instructions
	TOR
	L.9.1
	Instructions to Offerors- Page Limitations
	L.9.1 - The General Proposal instructions now specify that items previously outside the total page count (Part 2A-2, Part 2A-3, and any cover, transmittal letter, table of contents, list of figures and/or acronyms list) are now included in the page count. Although the page count has been increased to 125, we are concerned that offeror’s ability to provide – in particular – comprehensive and meaningful measures and effective metrics relative to Attachment D, as well as necessary technical exceptions and assumptions is now more limited. We therefore respectfully request that these items not be considered part of the page count.
	The solicitation has been revised to allow the exception of any cover/transmittal letter, table of contents, list of figures, and/or acronym list.  However, the other items mentioned in the question are still included as part of the page limitation. 
Offerors are referred to the recent changes in L.9.2.1.2 which say, in part “The contractor shall propose the most important quantifiable performance standards/level for those mission critical services that will best illustrate the contractor’s provision of excellent information technology services across the GSA enterprise.”  And “Please note that offeror’s need not address the minimal performance standards as found in the draft PRS except to confirm their ability to meet them or unless they do so as a means of illustrating how they will exceed or supersede that measure in their approach.”

	018
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	L.9.3.2.3
L.15
	Key Personnel - Availability
	L.9.3.2.3/L-15 - One of our potential Key Personnel is a retiring government employee. While this person will be available for orals and contract start with no restrictions, a name cannot be used in a government solicitation until official retirement on 1 August 2012. We propose submitting a KPQM with relevant experience and qualifications, but without personally identifying information.  Is it acceptable to submit a KPQM without a name?
	This exception is reasonable and acceptable.  We are evaluating skills and qualifications and the name is irrelevant to our ability to evaluate the appropriateness of the employee for the work.  Offerors must provide confirmation of actual employment and explain the non-disclosure of the name. Note modifications made to TOR Section M.3.2.


	019
	Hardware
	PWS
	3.4 Local Services
	Inventory
	PWS 3.4, Local Services - To help ensure correct staffing by location, please specify the amount of tape activity (number of mounts/unmounts) per location. Please list the make, model, and size of the tape silos in the data center or regional offices. How often are tapes sent off-site per location?
	GSA has 15 locations with tape (essentially 1 per Region/HQ office). Regions 6, 7, 11, Crystal City, and HQ have the largest libraries holding hundreds of tapes each; Region 6 has 2 such libraries.  All 15 locations utilize off-site storage with weekly tape pickup/drop-off. Tape activity is identified in detail in Attachment 46 MAC Data under the “NW.Server.ChangeTapes” category. GSA expects the number of sites with tape/pickup/drop-off to decrease through consolidation over the next few years.

	020
	Hardware
	PWS
	3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.4.1
	Local Support
	PWS 3.2.1 Desired Outcomes; 3.2.2 Constraints; 3.4 Local Support; 3.4.4 IMAC – 
The GTO contractor will be responsible for supporting end-user devices such as printers and copiers.  a. Does this include installing, maintaining, and troubleshooting toner cartridges?  b. If so, does the GSA maintain an inventory of toner for all devices, or is this the responsibility of the GTO contractor?
	(a.) The contractor is responsible for installing, maintaining, and troubleshooting toner cartridges.
(b.) The contractor is responsible for maintaining adequate inventory levels of government furnished toner for all devices. While the contractor maintains the inventory and insures sufficient supplies are available, GSA is responsible for purchasing the supplies.

	021
	Deliverables
	PWS
	Section F
	Work Products/ Deliverables 
Probe and Response Guide
	PWS 3.3.3 Enterprise IT Service Desk Work Product #6;
PWS 3.4.3 Local Support Work Product #1;
Section F Deliverables – Section 3.3.3 of the PWS lists a “Probe and Response Guide” as WP-20.  Section 3.4.3 of the PWS indicates that WP-20 is the “Local Support Statistics Included in the Weekly/Monthly Status Report”.  Section F, Table 1 lists the WP-20 as “Support Statistics Included in the Weekly/Monthly Status Report”.  
Will the GSA update the entry in Section F Deliverable Tables to include the “Probe and Response Guide” and clarify whether the guide is a Work Product or Deliverable?
	The Probe & Response requirement has been eliminated.

The Local Support Statistics Included in the Weekly/Monthly Status Report should be a naturally occurring set of statistics from the monitoring process and, since they should be reported with the Status Reports (in PWS 2.6, which covers all task areas) has also been eliminated.
The PWS sections and the TOR Section F have been modified.

	022
	Reports
	PWS and TOR
	Section F and PWS 3.5.3
	Work Products/ Deliverables – Directory Services Report (etc.)

	PWS 3.5.3 Directory Management Services Work Product #2 and #3;  Section F Deliverables –
The PWS lists the “Directory Services Audit Report (Monthly)” and the “Active Directory Health Check Results (Bi-Annually)” as work products / deliverables.  However there are not corresponding entries in Section F, Table 1 or Table 2.  Will the GSA add these entries to the Section F Deliverable Tables and clarify whether the documents are Work Products or Deliverables?
	The bi-annual Active Directory Health Check Results - GSA pays Microsoft to perform AD health check on all the Domain Controllers every two years.  The GTO contractor would be needed to assist Microsoft in providing access to the data and would also be required to do a review and analysis of the results.  The access is part of normal operational cooperation as required in the PWS.  The review would be a deliverable.
Directory Services Audit Report - A monthly deliverable summarizing all critical Active Directory related functions, services, and security indicators.  For example, SLA compliance; CAC usage compliance; notification of Domain Admin usage/changes; administrative group change reporting. Reporting is to be calculated based on calendar month, beginning with day 1, to be delivered NLT day 10 of the following next month.
Directory Services Ad Hoc Reports - Due to the varying size and frequency of outputs, reports will be requested by the Government on an as-needed basis to be produced as a formal Deliverable.  
These clarifications have been made to the PWS and Section F of the TOR.

	023
	Hardware
	PWS
	3.6 Server Services
	Inventory
	PWS 3.6, Servers Services
To help ensure correct staffing by location, please provide the make, model, size, and location of each disk storage array or JBOD tray of disk storage.
	Staffing should be able to be determined via provided inventory, however GSA has attached additional information to illustrate size of array per locations.  See new Attachment 50 NetApp Capacity by Location.xlsx.

	024
	Deliverables
	PWS and TOR
	Section F and PWS 3.6.2.3
	Work Products/ Deliverables
	The PWS lists the “Data Center and Rack Elevation Diagram (Quarterly)” as a work product / deliverable.  However there is not a corresponding entry in Section F, Table 1 or Table 2.  Will the GSA add an entry to the Section F Deliverable Tables and clarify whether the diagram is a Work Product or Deliverable?
	The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification.

	025
	EIOC
	PWS
	3.7.1
	Government Furnished Equipment
	PWS 3.7.1 EIOC
The GTO contractor will provide monitoring of all information technology infrastructure components via the EIOC.  Will the GTO contractor require access to GSA applications, data bases, and other systems?  If so, will the GSA provide workstations with the appropriate secure access to the GSA systems in the contractor-provided EIOC and call centers?
	GTO contractor is not required to access/monitor GSA's business lines applications, databases, or systems.  GSA will provide the contractor access to internal Circuit database and IP Address Management database via a secured VPN connection.


	026
	Video Conferencing
	PWS and Attachment B
	PWS 3.7.5, 3.7.6
	Statistics
	PWS 3.7.5 Video Communications Services Support; 3.7.6 On-line Meeting Services Support; 
Attachment B - The GSA currently has over 300 network-based videoconferencing systems across the enterprise.  How many videoconference meetings are conducted each month and what is the expected growth rate?  
	In the last 12 months there have been 1,450 scheduled conferences. This includes dry runs. All of the conferences were scheduled by the Video Team except for Region 7, which booked 300 conferences. So the average was 120 per month, but would have been 96 without the Region 7 conferences. The Video Team monitors all calls. In general GSA averages about 3-6 scheduled conferences a day and on peak days average 12 to 15 conferences. This average has doubled in the last 12 to 15 months.

	027
	Video Conferencing
	PWS and Attachment B
	3.7.5
	Government Furnished Equipment
	PWS 3.7.5 Video Communications Services Support; 3.7.6 On-line Meeting Services Support; Attachment B - Will process documentation for network-based video conferencing systems be provided?
	GSA will make available all process documentation for network-based video conferencing systems to the contractor after award.


	028
	Asset Management
	PWS and Section F
	3.8.3
	Work Products/ Deliverables
	PWS 3.8.3 Asset Management – Work Products / Deliverables;  Section F.5 Deliverables
The PWS lists the “Asset Management and Inventory Management Plan and Schedule” as a work product / deliverable.  However there is not a corresponding entry in Section F, Table 1 or Table 2.  Will the GSA add an entry to the Section F Deliverable Tables and clarify whether the Plan and Schedule is a Work Product or Deliverable?
	The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification. The Section F.5 has been revised and no longer numbers work products and deliverables, but does include this item as a Deliverable.

	029
	Training
	PWS and Section F
	5.2.2.2
	Work Products/ Deliverables
	PWS 5.2.2.2 Training Support – Work Products / Deliverables; Section F.5 Deliverables
The PWS lists the “GTO Training Plan” as a work product / deliverable.  However there is not a corresponding entry in Section F, Table 1 or Table 2.  Will the GSA add an entry to the Section F Deliverable Tables and clarify whether the Plan is a Work Product or Deliverable?
	The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification. The Section F.5 has been revised and no longer numbers work products and deliverables, but does include this item as a Deliverable.

	030
	Reports
	PWS 
	6.2.3 Problem Management Support- Work Products/ Deliverables Section F.5 Deliverables
	Work Products/ Deliverables
#1, #2, #3, #4; 

	The PWS lists the “Problem Analysis and Resolution Management Plan”; “Monthly Status Report”; “Problem Analysis Report”; and the “Problem Resolution Business Case Analysis” as work products / deliverables.  However there are not corresponding entries in Section F, Table 1 or Table 2.  Will the GSA add entries to the Section F Deliverable Tables and clarify whether these plans and reports are Work Products or Deliverables?
	The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification. The Section F.5 has been revised and no longer numbers work products and deliverables, but does include these items.

	031
	Service Desk
	TOR 
As-Is Environment
	Attachment 14
Service Desk Statistics
	Statistics
	The last two months of statistics (May and June 2011) show a significant increase in the number of contacts. Can GSA provide the background on why this increase occurred?
	That period included our GSA Enterprise transition from IBM Notes to Google (Gmail).  

	032
	Local Support
	TOR Attachment A
	[bookmark: _Toc323638104][bookmark: _Toc311458330]Section 1.3, Assumptions and Constraints #6

	OCONUS
	a. Do the two GSA FTEs in Stuttgart Germany service all European locations (i.e. Germany, Belgium, Holland and the UK)?
b. How much travel do the two FTEs in Stuttgart do today? 
c. Will SOFA status (ID cards, base privileges) be provided to the contractor?
	a. The two GSA FTE in Stuttgart Germany service all European locations including Italy, and Africa and the Middle East. A revised Attachment 03 GSA Customer Locations is provided provides the locations that need support.
b. Approximately 65 trips annually for touch, break/fix, refresh, and infrastructure outage support.
c. GSA will not provide SOFA status.

	033
	Local Support
	TOR Attachment A
	Section C 3.4.2, Constraints #5
	OCONUS
	a. Does the incumbent have cleared staff today in all or some Asia Pacific locations? 
b. How much travel does the staff perform today in support of users in these locations? 
c. Will SOFA status (ID cards, base privileges) be provided to the contractor?
	a. The incumbent has cleared staff in Yokosuka, Japan.
b. Approximately 4 trips annually for touch, break-fix, and infrastructure outage support. 
c. GSA will not provide SOFA status. 

	034
	Local Support
	TOR Attachment A
	Section C, 3.4.2, Constraints #5 plus H.7 Security requirements
	OCONUS
Security Clearances
	a. Will GSA allow local, non-U.S. citizens (nationals) in each country to provide the OCONUS local support? 
b. Our question/concern relates to the security requirements specified in H.7. Will local nationals require a MBI check, or would U.S. citizens who have an MBI check be preferred?
	All contractors must be US citizens with a MBI clearance.  However, Europe is an optional requirement.  GSA will not provide SOFA status.

	035
	Help Desk and Local Support
	As-Is Documentation, TOR Attachment B and associated attachments
	
	Application Support
	Is the GTO contractor responsible for the maintenance, patching, upgrading, configuration, training, and Help Desk support for the applications listed in Attachment B?  
	The GTO Contractor support is generally required of all Enterprise-wide system applications in support of the OCIO portfolio, the standard desktop, and infrastructure.  Tier 1 support is required of OCFO applications.  Unless the option is exercised, PBS-specific applications are not included and no operations and management responsibilities are included.  Even when exercised there is no responsibility on the part of the GTO contract for BMC applications.  

	036
	Software Tools for Directory Management
	Attachment 22 and Attachment A, Section C 3.5, Directory Management services
	
	Government Furnished Equipment
	What directory management tools are currently in place that will be provided as GFE?
	MS Native tools
NetIQ Directory and Resource Administrator (DRA)  8.5 SP1 - To manage user accounts
NetIQ Group Policy Administrator (GPA)  6.2 - To manage group policies
Forefront Identity Management System (FIM)  2010 - To manage password sync 
System Center Operations Manager  2007 R2 - To monitor Domain Controllers replication

Not part of DS tools, but we use:
Password Manager PRO - to manage Service Accounts
ActivIdentity Card Management System - to manage USB SNA tokens
Safenet HSM - to manage internal MS PKI cert

	037
	Local Support
	TOR Attachment 45 --moves and changes recent data
	
	Moves, Adds, and Changes
	Based on its description, this attachment provides data on field-dispatched calls for moves, adds, and changes. 
a. Is this correct? 
b. Can the Government provide the same type of data for refresh or new installs and desk-side software support calls sent to the field by region?
	a. No, Attachments 45 and 46 identify all GSA’s move, add, change activities across all service categories for the period from January 2011 – February 2012 whether dispatched, onsite, or remote.(Note: this data set includes the one-time move of half of GSA’s Central Office personnel to swing space due to the headquarters renovation project.).
b. Attachments 45 and 46 provide all refresh activity under the  HW.Laptop.Upgrade category and software support under SW.Request.XXX and SW.Unintall.XXX categories.

	038
	Optional Support
	PWS 10, Optional CLINs
	
	Pricing
	How does the government plan on evaluating price for the Optional CLINs? Will the government provide instructions on how to price these CLINS?
	The optional CLINs will be evaluated to determine the reasonableness of the fixed hourly labor rate for the labor category(ies) proposed to satisfy any requirements, including any discounts offered.  The awarded labor categories and hourly labor rates will be fixed, and the hours proposed to complete a specific task will be negotiated to arrive at a total firm fixed price for the task or the total cost estimate (ceiling amount) for a labor hour tasks. 

	039
	Server Services
	3.6.1 Server Infrastructure Services Page 20
	
	Inventory
	How many Physical Servers (single O/S), Virtual Server Hosts (Physical with Hypervisor) and virtual servers (O/S Instances) are supported at each Data Center and Regional Offices?
	Physical and virtual servers should be determined by the already provided As-Is Environment and Attachments.  In addition, GSA has provided an additional list as Attachment 51 VM Host by Location.xlsx.

	040
	Key Personnel Qualifications Matrix
	TOR L.9.1
	
	Instructions to Offerors – Page Limitations
	If you include the KPQMs in the page limitations, and assuming 2 pages per KPQM (given the level of information requested, this is a reasonable assumption), the required key positions will use fourteen (14) pages. This will not only reduce the number of pages needed to respond to a comprehensive set of technical and management TOR requirements, it will also seriously limit the number of additional key personnel offerors will be able to bid, which GSA has encouraged. Therefore, we respectfully request that the KPQMs are excluded from the page count.
	The Key Personnel Qualifications Matrix is part of the page limit.

	041
	Staffing Plan
	Attachment I, Staffing Plan Table
	
	Instructions to Offerors – Page Limitations
	Based on the assumption that the columns listed in Attachment I as “Task 1, Task 2” and so on are CLINs (as listed in Section B), we estimate the Staffing Plan table to exceed 20 pages.  This estimate is based on the fact that there are 21 CLINs and 5 columns of CLINs can fit on a single page, therefore requiring 4 pages per year, Based on 5 contract years, the minimum number of pages for the staffing plan tables is 20. Added to the large number of pages necessary for the KPQMs (see question above), the 125, all- encompassing page limitation is reduced dramatically.  Therefore, we respectfully request that the staffing plan tables are excluded from the page count.
	GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.
We require all staffing, however we have changed the table significantly in that it now only requests the base period of performance and does not require qualifications (just labor category information), among other changes.  We believe this (and the removal of non-evaluative materials such as TOC) will allow the staffing plan to fit within the 125 page limit.

	042
	EIOC
	TOR
PWS 3.7.1
	Section B, CLIN 9AA, 9AB
	Pricing
	The PWS Section 3.7.1 under “The Contractor shall operate, maintain and transform an EIOC resulting in solutions that achieve the following objectives: 2. Available – operate 24 hours per day 7 days per week….”
The Section B references are for pricing of two EIOC operations 24x5 and 24x7. Are we to propose and price both or just 24x7?
	GSA is requesting offerors to provide prices for both levels of service.  While offerors need to be able to support full 24x7 operations, business considerations may result in a decision for the alternative 24x5 level of support.

	043
	Schedule
	TOR
	Section F.3 Period of Performance
	Instructions to Offerors – Task Order Award Date
	The period of performance for the task order is a 12-month base period and four 1-year options.  For purposes of offerors submitting proposals, the estimated start date for the task order is Friday October 26, 2012.
Is October 26, 2012 the start of Transition or Task Order Award Date? If it is the start of transition what is the anticipated Task Order Award date?
	The current estimated dates are:

10/15/12=Award of Task Order
10/26/12=Begin Transition (Task Order Begins)

	044
	Security Clearances
	TOR
	H.7 Security Requirements
	Security 
	Requirements appear ambiguous—can the Government clarify the relationship of the MBI requirements and the NACI discussion on page H-8 under “Briefly GSA’s guidance states” where it states the Contractor must have a NACI.
	The requirement has been clarified with new language in the TOR, Section H. 

	045
	Training
	PWS
	PWS 5.2.2.2 Section F
	Work Products/ Deliverables
	The training plan does not show up anywhere else in the TOR (it is not in the Work Product or Deliverable Tables in Section F or Section L & M. 
Can the Government provide the due date in the TOR, Section F, Table 1 GTO Work Products?
	The solicitation has been revised to provide the requested clarification. 

	046
	Transition
	TOR
	Section F.5, Table 2, D-04
GTO Deliverables
	Work Products/ Deliverables -Transition-In Plan
	It states that the Final Transition-In Plan is not due until 45 days AOC.  
a. Are we correct in assuming that the Transition Period does not begin before the final plan has been approved? Also, what is meant by the term AOC?
	a. The Final Transition-In Plan will be a subject of negotiation after award.  
b. AOC - Award of Contract.
Please review the revised Section F for modifications on Work Products and Deliverables.

	047
	Task Order Management Plan
	TOR
	Section F.5, Table 2, D-01 GTO Deliverables
	Work Products/ Deliverables -Transition-In Plan
	States plan is due DOA_4 weeks.
What is meant by DOA_4 weeks? If this is 4weeks after Date of Award we believe it should be due at the end of Phase I of the Transition.
	Yes, 4 weeks after Date of Award. Please note that this has been modified in the revised Section F.

	048
	Work Products/ Deliverables 
	TOR
	Section F.5, Table 2, D-07
GTO Deliverables
	Architecture Management Plan
	States initial draft is due with proposal. The deliverable is not called out in the PWS. What is called out is Work Product W-37 in Table 1 of Section F.5.
Would the government please clarify?
	The Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.

	049
	Transition
	PWS
	Paragraph 2.12.1
	Transition – Space Considerations
	For the “AS-IS” Transition and Stabilization are we to assume that we will occupy the same space as current contractor with the exception of the Service Desk?
	Offerors are expected to propose the space needs they will require to perform the transition as well as that needed on a full time basis once they assume operational responsibility. However, stabilization and transformation are not tied to a physical location and where duties can be executed effectively and efficiently in contractor furnished space, they should be conducted there.  For example, a contractor could transition the existing NOC operations to the EIOC contractor facility during transition-in period. Also, the EIT Lab does not exist today and is dependent on contractor furnished facilities. 

	050
	Transition
	TOR
	Paragraph L.9.3.1.2
#4.
	Transition 
	Would the Government please clarify what is meant by “parallel operations and recognition of security issues?”
	The assumption here is that, in the process of transitioning from an established operation to a new operation, sufficient consideration would be given to some level of parallel operations to monitor the viability of the new state before complete reliance on that new operation.  The phrase “recognition of security issues” is equally fundamental.

	051
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2
	Certification Requirements
	All Key Personnel require Project Management Institute (PMI) certification as Project Management Professionals (PMP), and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. Key personnel with the exception of the Task Order Program Manager will have 6 months post award to provide documentation of ITIL Foundation Certification and 12 months post award to provide documentation of PMP certification.
Does this mean that the ITIL Certifications for the HD PM & HW PM have 6 months to achieve?
	Yes.  H.2 says “All Key Personnel require Project Management Institute (PMI) certification as Project Management Professionals (PMP), and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. Key personnel with the exception of the Task Order Program Manager will have 6 months post award to provide documentation of ITIL Foundation Certification and 12 months post award to provide documentation of PMP certification.” 

	052
	Key Personnel 
	TOR
	Section H.2.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	Certifications: Certified ITIL Manager, Help Desk Institute: Help Desk Manager (HDM) or other equivalent industry certifications.  ITIL Manager is not a valid certification as pointed out in the Q&A. The answer indicated that the highest level of appropriate ITIL Certification was required; yet the final TOR did not reflect a change from this invalid certification.  Can this requirement be updated to reflect either a valid certification or the desire for the highest level of ITIL certification for the position?
	The solicitation has been modified to remove this ambiguous language.  The requirement now states “Certified ITIL v3 Expert, Help Desk Institute: Help Desk Manager (HDM).”

	053
	
	TOR Attachment B
	Section 6.2 EITM Cloud Pilot (pp. 6-7)
	EITM – Service-Now
	Has GSA exercised the EITM SaaS Option Period 1 to implement the ServiceNow Solution?
	Yes.

	054
	Staffing Plan
	TOR 
	L.9.3.2.2 Project Staffing Plan Table
	Instructions to Offerors – Page Limitations 
	The RFP specifies that offeror submissions should contain all skill sets/full time equivalents that will be working on the effort.  It also says that offerors do not have to provide names at the time of submission.  Is the government looking for a complete roster of all expected personnel slots for the GSA GTO contract (without names), or simply head count and stated qualifications for the appropriate labor categories?
	GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.
We require all staffing, however we have changed the table significantly in that it now only requests the base period of performance and does not require qualifications (just labor category information), among other changes.  We believe this (and the removal of non-evaluative materials such as TOC) will allow the staffing plan to fit within the 125 page limit.

	055
	Staffing Plan
	TOR 
	L.9.3.2.2 Project Staffing Plan Table
	Instructions to Offerors –
Page Limitations
	If the government prefer a complete list of “slots” reflecting the offeror’s full complement of proposed personnel (without names for non-key positions), will the government exclude this attachment from the page count?  With 100+ personnel and the requirement to list the qualifications for each individual, it could run to 50+ pages.
	GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.
We require all staffing, however we have changed the table significantly in that it now only requests the base period of performance and does not require qualifications (just labor category information), among other changes.  We believe this (and the removal of non-evaluative materials such as TOC) will allow the staffing plan to fit within the 125 page limit.

	056
	
	TOR
	L.9.3.2.2 Project Staffing Plan Table; Attachment I
	Instructions to Offerors
	Attachment I states that it is to be removed at time of award. Please clarify this statement.
	This staffing plan was intended for evaluation purposes only. Please review the new template and use it as a guide.  Significant changes have been made to the information requirements.   
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	TOR
	Attachment I
	Instructions
	With regard to Tasks 1, 2, 3 the government has not delineated specific tasks under this task order. Please offer guidance to fill this template out correctly.
	The Attachment is a template and for illustrative purposes used the generic terms Tasks 1, 2, and 3.  However, this template is significantly changed and simplified.  Please review carefully the revised Attachment I provided.  
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	TOR
	Attachment I
	Instructions to Offerors
	Given that the pricing information will include the estimated labor hours and requirements for personnel for all proposed positions, please consider removing the Attachment I requirement.  We believe the pricing information will provide the same information in a better format for evaluation.
	The Project Staffing Plan Table is for the technical evaluation of your staffing.  It should not contain any pricing information since pricing information is not made available to Technical Evaluators during the evaluation process.   
GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.  Significant changes have been made to the information requirements.
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	PWS
	PWS 3.6.1.3
	Architecture Management Plan
	The reference to Architecture Management Plan seems to fit better in PWS 7.1.3; there is no other in 3.6 to architecture, and Section 7 focuses on Architecture.  Will the government amend the PWS with the new reference for Deliverable D-07?
	Yes.  Please note that the Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.  The requirement for submitting a draft plan with proposals has been removed.
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	TOR
Section B
	CLINs 00005, 00006, 00008 and 00009
	Pricing - CLINs
	CLINs 00005, 00006, 00008, and 00009 each have a number of related sub-CLINs. For example, CLIN 00005 is followed by 00005AA, AB, AC, etc. Do the tasks associated with these sub-CLINs constitute the full scope of the overarching CLINs? For example, does the scope encompassed by CLINs 00005AA through 00005AG equal CLIN 00005? If yes, is the contractor to price the overarching CLIN, or just the associated sub-CLINs? If no, what scope of each overarching CLIN is to be priced at the overarching CLIN level?
	Yes, the sub-CLINs constitute the full scope of the associated overarching CLIN for CLIN 0005, only.  Therefore, pricing is only required at the sub-CLIN level for CLIN 0005.  For CLINs 0006, 0008 and 0009, the overarching CLIN is separately priced for the support of the specified PWS requirements except those sections identified as "separately priced" in the CLIN description. 

	061
	
	TOR
Section B
	CLINs 00007 and 00008
	Pricing - CLINs
	GSA has suggested labor hour (LH) pricing for Directory Management Services (CLIN 00007) and Server Services (CLIN 00008), while other core tasks, such as Networking and Communications Support are Firm Fixed Price (FFP). Since Directory Management Services and Server Services tasks have well defined requirements, what is the rationale for LH pricing for these CLINs?
	The rationale for specifying labor hour for these CLINs is because a component of them is project work that could not be clearly delineated from the O&M level of effort. However, as noted in the TOR, the CLIN structure is a "suggested" pricing table and the offeror may propose a CLIN structure and/or contract type appropriate to their solution.
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	TOR
Section B
	CLIN 00009 and 00009AC through 00009AF
	Pricing - CLINs
	GSA’s CLINs under Networking and Communications Support (CLIN 00009) do not include a separate CLIN for Networking Services Support (PWS 3.7.2). Instead, Networking Services Support (PWS 3.7.2) is included within sub-CLINS 00009AC through 00009AF. Will the Government please clarify why Networking Services support is combined with other Networking and Communications Support sub-CLINs with the exception of Remote Workforce Staff Support, CLIN 00009AH?
	Changes to TOR Section B, CLIN 00009 are being made as well as changes in a revised PWS. 


	063
	
	TOR
Section B
	CLIN 00009 and sub-CLINs
	Pricing - CLINs
	CLIN 00009 for Networking and Communications Support Services Support/Enterprise Infrastructure Operations Monitoring Support specifies 24X5 with after hours on call support. In developing our staffing, is the contractor to assume support on a 24x5 basis for related sub-CLINs 00009AC through 00009AF and 00009AH?
	Changes to TOR Section B, CLIN 00009 are being made as well as changes in a revised PWS. 


	064
	
	TOR 
Section B
	CLINs 00014, 00015, 00017
	Pricing - CLINs
	In GSA’s responses to offeror questions during previous question periods (Q#167), the Government stated that a NTE estimate would be provided for all contractors to use. Will the Government provide a NTE amount for CLINs 00014, 00015, and 00017? If not, can the Government provide an estimated number and duration of unplanned support activities so that the contractor can accurately project these costs?
	A Not To Exceed (NTE) amount for these CLINs will not be provided at this time.  The estimated value will be based on the awarded proposal and will be added at contract award.


	065
	
	TOR
Section B
	CLINs 00026 and 00027
	Pricing - CLINs
	In GSA’s responses to offeror questions during previous question periods (Q# 274, 269, 173), the Government indicated that a NTE Amount would be provided for Travel and ODCs (CLINs 00026 and 00027). Will the Government provide a new Schedule B with NTE amounts for Travel and ODCs? If not, will the Government provide estimated duration, number of trips, locations for travel, or similar data so that the contractor can accurately project these costs?
	A Not To Exceed (NTE) amount for these CLINs will not be provided at this time.  The estimated value will be based on the awarded proposal and will be added at contract award.


	066
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	The certification requirements specified in section H.2.4 state, “Certified ITIL Manager, Help Desk Institute: Help Desk Manager (HDM) or other equivalent industry certifications.” What method will the Government use to assess equivalence?
	The solicitation has been modified to remove this ambiguous language.  The requirement now states “Certified ITIL v3 Expert, Help Desk Institute: Help Desk Manager (HDM).”
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	TOR
	H.5 Government Furnished Property (GFP)
	Government Furnished Property (GFP)
	Section H.5 states that contractors will be furnished with “Laptop computers and mobile devices (smart phones) on an as needed basis.” In the event that GSA does not provide smart phones to some contractor staff, can the contractor provide the smart phones, and in that case will the Government allow these contractor furnished devices to be connected to GSA systems? For example, if the contractor purchases Blackberries and provides the hardware and data plan for voice and data, will GSA allow these Blackberries to be provisioned via the GSA BES server?
	Yes.  Additional smart phones, beyond those provided by the government, may be connected to the GSA system if they meet the necessary security provisions.  GSA will determine this on a case by case basis.  GSA is moving away from Blackberry (BES) supported services.
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	TOR
	H.5

	Government Furnished Property (GFP)
	TOR Section H.5 states, “The Government will furnish the contractor with the following equipment: 1. Work space as necessary with at least touchdown space with one workstation and telephone.” Will GSA provide a minimum of one touchdown space per location; i.e., at HQ, DC-based sites, and each Regional office?
	GSA will provide a minimum of one workspace and telephone for each major location at HQ and ROBs.

	069
	
	TOR
	H.7

	Security Requirements
	Section H details the security requirements for contractor staff. What are the security requirements for temporary or intermittent contractor support?
	Temporary contractors (i.e., those requiring routine access for 6 months or less) needing access to GSA IT systems must abide by the same personnel investigation requirements for IT access as GSA employees and long-term contractors.  The applicable policies and procedures for issuing and maintaining GSA credentials are provided in Attachment 12 GSA Order CIO P 2181.1 Homeland Security Presidential Directive-12 Personal Identity Verification and Credentialing.

	070
	
	TOR and Amendment 2 
SF30
	L.9.1 and page 1 of 1
Part 2 Submission Contents and Block 14
	Instructions to Offerors – Submission Date/Time
	Section L.9.1 states, “contractors must submit the information described below on or before 3:00 PM Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) Monday June 11, 2012” and Block 14 of the GTO Amendment 2 SF30 states, “The date and time specified for submission of Part 2 responses is extended to 9:00 AM EST on Monday, June 11, 2012.” Will the Government clarify the time by which proposals are due on 11 June 2012?
	Submissions must be received by 3:00 PM Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) Monday June 11, 2012.
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	TOR
	L.9.3.1.2
	Transition-In Plan
	Section L.9.3.1.2 requires the offeror’s plan to include “A Listing of Hardware and Software that the offeror anticipates the Government will need to provide.” Acknowledging that the offeror is expected to submit a list of required equipment at a contractor site, what data telecommunications equipment (for example, circuit, premise router, switch, etc.) will be provided by GSA?
	Section H.5, Item 7 states that "The Government will provide GFP network circuits to the Enterprise IT Service Desk (EITSD), the Enterprise Integrated Operations Center (EIOC), and the IT Lab located in contractor furnished facilities."  The Government will furnish one router for each GFP dedicated circuit end-point.


	072
	Space
	PWS
	1.1
	Place of Performance
	Section 1.1 of the PWS specifies GSA’s goals for space reduction, expresses a requirement for the Contractor to designate a location other than a GSA facility as the primary place of performance, and states, “…initially this policy will only apply to GSA offices in the Washington, DC Metro Area…Eventually this policy will be extended to the entire agency.” Will the Government provide a timeline for reduction in available space at each of the regions other than Washington, DC? Or is the contractor to assume that no space is available in GSA facilities to house contractors from day one of the contract?
	Necessary space accommodations will be made to maintain effective operations, however, the purpose of the language in the PWS Section 1.1 is to make offeror’s aware it will be a limited commodity beginning in the DC Metropolitan area and eventually across the agency.  An assumption of ‘no space’ would be an unrealistic, extreme, and non-utilitarian position.  GSA’s position has been and remains as outlined in the solicitation and in earlier question and answer periods.   No defined timeline is currently available.
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	PWS
	1.1 and 3.6.2
	Place of Performance and Data Center Support
	Section 1.1 of the PWS requires the Contractor to designate a location other than a GSA facility as the primary place of performance. PWS 3.6.2 requires operations management, maintenance, and support for the GSA data centers. Does GSA have federal employees that sit in the data centers that can interact with contractor staff located in contractor facilities?
	GSA does not have federal employees for Kansas City, Fort Worth, or the Chantilly sites.
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	PWS
	3.3
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Password resets – how many of the contact phone calls and emails are for password reset requests?  If a number is not known, can the Government estimate the percentage of password reset requests against the total call volume?
	Password Reset Percentages for March 2012 were 4.52% versus all tickets.
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	PWS
	3.3
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Is the Government able to provide the average talk time and average handle time per incident at the Service Desk?  (AHT is defined as call talk time; any on hold time the agent has with the user and call wrap up time including after the agent hangs up with the customer and completes documentation.) If possible, will the Government provide AHT for SW issues, HW issues, Password Resets and Request calls?
	No.
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	PWS
	3.3
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	What percent of the call volume to the service desk is for requests vs. incidents?
	Change Orders for March 2012 represented 20.12% versus all tickets.

	077
	Space
	PWS
	3.4
	Local Support - Space
	a. Will GSA provide space for store fronts in each of the Regional Office Buildings? 
b. Will GSA provide space for store fronts in any of the Washington, DC locations?
	a. GSA will determine where regional store fronts will be deployed and will provide ROB space as sites are identified.  
b. GSA will provide store front space at Central Office HQ. 

	078
	Hardware
	PWS
	3.4
	Local Support - Spares
	Will GSA provide the contractor with a spare equipment inventory (e.g., minimal set of laptops) to be provided to GSA users as rapid replacement GFE units for cases where the estimated time of device repair exceeds the SLA(s)?
	Yes. GSA will furnish a spare equipment inventory. The contractor is responsible for asset management and inventory of the spare equipment. The contractor should propose an estimated quantity or percentage of GFP spare equipment required to support their technical approach and meet proposed SLAs.

	079
	Local Support
	PWS
	3.4.1 and 3.4.2
	Local Support
	Local Support Constraints: The PWS states, “Provide best effort for field offices and local support outside of ROBs.” However, PWS section 3.4.1 states, “Equivalent services for GSA customer regardless of location.” These two statements appear to be contradictory. For support requiring “touch labor,” does GSA require the same level of resolution time for remote sites as it does for ROBs and HQ? 
	GSA is looking to industry to propose the means by which services could best be provided regardless of location given the stated constraints and desired outcomes. 

	080
	
	PWS
	3.4.4.1
	Installs, Moves, Adds and Changes (IMACs) Support
	One of the specified desired outcomes for IMAC Support is stated as: “Contractor/subcontractor support for cabling services particularly in regions without cable contractors.” 
a. Does GSA have existing cable contractors that may provide cabling support in some regions? 
b. If so, will these cabling contractors continue to be used by GSA after GTO is awarded?
	a. Yes
b. The continued use of existing cable contracts will be dependent upon the proposed solution and the scope of individual projects. GSA will leverage the best solution to meet requirements.


	081
	
	PWS
	3.6
	Server Services
	In section 3.6, GSA requires the contractor to provide 24x7 server infrastructure support (3.6.1.2). However, no such requirement is listed in the data center support constraints (3.6.2.2). Does GSA require the contractor to provide 24x7 data center support services?
	Yes.  GSA requires 24x7 Data Center support services availability.   This does not imply, however, that someone must be physically present in each center 24x7.  The requirement is that someone could be responsive in a reasonable period of time with regularly scheduled visits for routine task performance based on the offeror’s plan and GSA’s requirements in the PWS.

	082
	
	PWS
	3.7.7.2
	Remote Workforce Staff
	In Remote Workforce Staff support constraints (3.7.7.2), GSA has indicated specific hours for core support (Mon- Fri, 7 AM to 7PM) and on-call support (7 pm - 11 PM, Mon - Fri and 7 AM - 7 PM, Sat Sun). However, GSA has not indicated specific support hours in other subtasks (Networking, Telecom, Voice, Video, and Online Meeting) within Networking and Communications Support except for EIOC (3.7.1). Does the contractor assume the same support hour requirements for subtasks 3.7.2 through 3.7.6 as for 3.7.7?
	Changes to the PWS are forthcoming to clearly address this question.
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	PWS
	9
	Continuity of Operations and Disaster Recovery Support
	What is the configuration of GSA’s DR sites? Are they active-active or active-passive?
	GSA has a variety of Disaster Recovery approaches that vary by region and application group.  The goal is to use the new contract vehicle as a way to address the various approaches and to standardize and improve over time.  GSA looks forward to working with the contractor in this regard.


	084
	
	Attachment D
	
	Performance Requirements Summary
	In Performance Requirements Summary (Attachment D), GSA has used both “business days” and “days” terms. When using the term “days” within this document, does GSA mean calendar days or business days?
	Unless otherwise specified, these are business days.  Business days exclude Federal Holidays and weekend days.
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	Attachment D
	
	Performance Requirements Summary
	In Performance Requirements Summary (Attachment D), under the IMAC section, GSA has listed performance measures for “minor IMAC” as well as “moderate IMAC.” Can GSA further define what constitutes minor and moderate IMACs?
	Offerors should propose the criteria for what constitutes an IMAC that is consistent with their proposed solution.
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	Attachment D and PWS
	PWS 3.2
	Performance Requirements Summary and Client/User Services
	In Performance Requirements Summary (Attachment D), GSA has listed patch management and software distribution related performance measures under the “Asset Management and Inventory Management” task area. In the PWS document, patch management and software distribution fall under Client/User Services (PWS 3.2). Will GSA please clarify under which task area patch management and software distributions are encompassed?
	It should be included under Client/User Services (PWS 3.2).

	087
	Service Desk
	Attachment 28
	August OCFO Monthly Report amended
	Ticket Volume
	Contact volume vs. Ticket Creation Volume appears to indicate that the ticket volume is lower than the contact volume coming into the desk; the data indicates an average of 15-20% of monthly calls do not generate tickets. Are there defined criteria specifying cases in which certain calls do not require a ticket to be created?  
	There are two areas where a new ticket is not created for a call:
1) when a user checks the status of a ticket 
2) when a user has an update to a ticket with new information.
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	TOR
	E.2 Sub-Para 2
	Third-Party Contractor for Advisory and Assistance (A&A) services
	Will the 3rd party advisor be involved in daily activities or will they be engaged quarterly, bi-annual or yearly?
	In order to perform their duties as outlined in the Performance Work Statement (PWS), the Third-Party Contractor for A&A services must be involved on a daily basis.
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	TOR
	E.2  Sub-Para 2
	Third-Party contractor for Advisory and Assistance (A&A) services
	Will the 3rd party have any contractual oversight or strictly an advisory role to GSA?
	Attachment A – Section C Performance Work Statement, paragraph 1 clearly provides the anticipated role of this contractor as advisory.  The use of the term ‘oversight’ in the description deals with oversight and monitoring of office requirements for performance tracking.  Oversight of government contractors is an inherently governmental function.   
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	TOR
	F.5
Table- item 
D-07
	Architecture Management Plan
	The table shows that a draft Architecture Management Plan is due with the proposal. This plan is not shown within the Part 2 Technical Submission Requirements Table.  Where should it be included within our submission?
	The Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.  A draft is not expected for Part 2 Technical submissions.

	091
	
	TOR
	F.5
D-01
	Task Order Management Plan
	Deliverable D-01 indicates that the Initial Draft of the TMP is required as part of the proposal response. Can the Government please confirm that this is to be included as Part 2B and no additional plan is required with the proposal?
	The Instructions to Offerors (Section L) define the plans required.  Please follow the instructions there for offeror submissions to Part 2B.

	092
	
	TOR
	F.6
Sub-Para 2
	File Format
	Please clarify the file format for submission of contractual documents.
	The format has been corrected in Section F to read “PDF”.
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	TOR
	H.25
Para 3
	Instructions to Offerors
	Where in the response should the statement regarding compliance with the License Agreement Requirements be placed?
	The statement should be included with the Price Proposal.  The requirement and instruction is now in H.25 and in L.10.1 under item h.  Other Statements.
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	TOR
	L.1
Provisions
	Instructions to Offerors
	The instructions require submission of an explanation of offeror’s approach to completing the security plan and certification and security authorization. Where is this to be submitted within Part 2?
	Offerors should submit this information in their Task Order Management Plan.



	095
	
	TOR
	L.5
Para 1
	Instructions to Offerors
	Where in the response should the statement regarding availability of all Equipment and software for general release be placed?
	The statement should be included with the Price Proposal.  The requirement and instruction is now in L.5 under item h.  Other Statements.

	096
	Hardware
	PWS
	PWS 1.3 
Sub-Para 8
	Assumptions and Constraints
	In response to the PWS, new technical solutions will likely be proposed to meet GSA program goals (e.g., “A3” support). These solutions will potentially require hardware, software, and telecommunications expenditures. The PWS states explicitly that the “purchase of hardware, software, telecommunications, and Cloud Computing services are not covered in this requirement.” Is the offeror to price the hardware and software associated with our proposed solution or will GSA purchase these items separately as indicated within the PWS?
	This contract does not include the purchase of the items, as listed in the quoted PWS.  The offeror is not expected to price the items or assume they will be purchased.
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	Attachment B - As Is Environment
	6.2
	Service-Now
	What is the state of GSA’s migration to ServiceNow?
	The migration is on schedule.  The Incident Management tool was implemented on March 1, 2012 and will be deployed on July 1 & Nov 1, 2012.
The following tools are scheduled for implementation on August 31, 2012 and Deployment on November 1, 2012:
Service Catalog, Asset Management, Change Management, Problem Management, and CMDB (Mid-Server Installation).

	
	
	Attachment B – As Is Environment
	6.2
	CA-Unicenter
	How is the Government going to integrate CA Unicenter CMDB with ServiceNow?
	GSA does not have CA Unicenter CMDB.  We will be utilizing the ServiceNow CMDB.
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	Attachment B – As Is Environment
	6.2
	CA-Unicenter
	How many of the CA Unicenter modules are going to be kept?
	CA NSM and ITCM will be retained.  GSA also uses CA Unicenter for remote control.
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	TOR
	Section B.12, page B-2
	Pricing
	Request Transition-In price be excluded from the evaluation since it gives the incumbent an advantage.
	GSA is not able to eliminate any natural advantages that an incumbent might have over other competition, however, price is not as important as technical in the Best Value decision process.  See Section M for evaluation information.
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	TOR
	Attachment I
	Pricing - CLINs
	The staffing table includes columns labeled “Task 1”, “Task 2”, etc.  Please clarify what Task 1, 2 etc. refer to? If PWS or CLIN, then at what level?  If neither, then how should the hours should be broken out by position?  Please bear in mind that the larger the number of columns, the bigger the table will be.
	GSA has revised and simplified the Staffing Plan Table (Attachment I).  Please review the new template and use it as a guide.


	102
	
	TOR
	Section F.5
	Architecture Management Plan
	The Initial Draft of Deliverable D-07, Architecture Management Plan, is to be submitted with the proposal. However, the Plan is not addressed in Section L instructions or Section M evaluation criteria? Please clarify whether the Architecture Management Plan is required with the proposal? If it is, then (a) is it acceptable to include it as an Appendix to the Technical Proposal, (b)  is it excluded from the 125 page limit for the Technical Proposal, and (c) is the reference to PWS 3.6.1.3 correct?
	Section F has been significantly changed; please review the revised table. The Architecture Management Plan is a deliverable for after award.  The table has been modified to make this clear.  A draft is not required for Part 2 Technical submissions.
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	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.5
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	Please confirm that ITIL v3 Expert certification is required at contract start.
	TOR Section H.2 states “All Key Personnel require Project Management Institute (PMI) certification as Project Management Professionals (PMP), and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. Key personnel with the exception of the Task Order Program Manager will have 6 months post award to provide documentation of ITIL Foundation Certification and 12 months post award to provide documentation of PMP certification.”
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	PWS
	Section 3.7.1
	SOC
	Please confirm the GTO contractor responsibility for monitoring the SOC.
	GSA confirms that the GTO contractor does not have responsibility for monitoring the SOC as part of their Enterprise monitoring responsibilities.  
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	TOR
	Attachment B
As-Is Environment
Section 9.1.1
	VoIP
	Cisco Unified Communications Manager - What types of servers is GSA using for CUCM?  How many are there?  This is somewhat unclear as the document references a CUCM at each ROB; however attachment 12 lists only 11 regions.  It further states that clustering is deployed using MCS-7845 in “multiple” locations.  Are the MCS 7845 servers the ones used as CUCM servers at each of the ROBs or is there a mixture of servers employed?  Are any of these servers virtualized?
	GSA is providing 
Attachment 46 GSA VoIP Inventory Report.xlsx 
as a response to this question.

	106
	Hardware & Software
	TOR 
	Attachment B As-Is Environment

a.
-Section 10.1 WAN/LAN Figure 11 

&

b.
Attachment 5 – Internet-
working & Security Software, Hardware, Tools, and Technologies 
	Monitoring
	Please clarify which of the following security equipment the GTO Contractor is responsible for monitoring?
a.	TOR Attachment B As-Is Environment.         Section 10.1 WAN/LAN, Figure 11
•	Checkpoint Firewall 
•	Palo Alto Firewall 
•	IBM ISS IDS Sensor 
•	Snort Sensor 
b.	TOR Attachment B As-Is Environment. Attachment 5 – Internetworking & Security Software, Hardware, Tools & Technologies
•	Checkpoint Firewall-1 versions R62 and R71 
•	Secure Platform (Splat) Operating System (based on Red Hat Enterprise Linux) 
•	High Availability and Load Sharing/Clustering 
•	Dell 2650 and R710 Hardware/Servers 2U form factor 
•	Management High Availability (Primary and Stand-By) 
•	Snort IPS (Open Source) 
•	SourceFire Defense Center (appliance) 
•	Dell 2950, VM esxi 
•	ISS/RealSecure 
•	Proventia Appliances 
•	Palo Alto Next Generation Firewalls 
•	Models 2020 and 4020 
•	Running PanOS 3.16 
•	Panorama 3.1.6 (Centralized policy management) 
•	URL filtering - BrightCloud with Dynamic extensions 
•	Threat Management Subscription (Anti-Virus, Malware) 
•	Active/Standby and Load-Sharing High Availability 
•	Cisco ASA and FWSM firewall modules 
•	Cisco PIX 
•	DNS/Bind Version 9.x including DNSSEC and IPV6 support including 
•	split brain (separate internal and external versions of gsa.gov) 
•	Squid for Patch Proxy 
•	Cisco Content Services Switch (CSS) for 1-800-DNS anycasting.
	The GTO contractor is responsible for monitoring ALL of the equipment/system listed.
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	TOR
Q&A 173
	Section B
	Pricing – CLINs NTE
	Response to Q&A #173 says GSA WILL provide a Government-estimated NTE value for all travel and ODC-related CLINs. However no NTE amounts estimated by the Government are provided in the Final TOR. Will the Government please release these estimates?  
# 086 & 167 state Government NTE estimates will be provided for as-needed capability CLINs/Surge CLINs, yet we cannot find these estimates in the Final TOR.  In summary, Q&A #'s 086, 167, 274, and 173 all make mention of Government provided NTE Estimates, although we cannot find these estimates in the TOR. 
Will the Government consider updating Section B to include the NTE Estimates to be used for pricing purposes?
	A Not To Exceed (NTE) amount for these CLINs will not be provided at this time.  The estimated value will be based on the awarded proposal and will be added at contract award.
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	TOR
	Section B
	Pricing
	Section B has headers for units, unit prices, and total, yet the Government does not specify the # of units to be ordered or what defines a unit. 
Are offerors to make their own assumptions here or will the Government clarify units to be ordered such that offerors may be evaluated consistently?
	Section B does not include the number of units because it will be specific to each offeror's proposed solution.  The expectation is that the offeror will provide those estimates based on their understanding of the level of effort needed and their proposed solution for satisfying the associated requirements.
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	TOR
	Section B
	Security
	GSA Response to Question 5 of Part 1 Q&A indicates that: "Offerors should submit a description of their approach to completing the security plan and certification and security authorization as a part of the Part 2 proposal submission.  See Section L.9.2.1.4."  The referenced TOR section addresses 508 compliance, not C&A or FISMA compliance.”  Would you please clarify the government’s expectations for Part 2 submission for C&A?
	Section L.9.2.1.4 now reads: Compliance Requirements –

Information Technology Security Plan, Certification and Authorization – All offers submitted in response to this solicitation must address their approach for completing the security plan and certification and security authorization requirements in their Task Order Management Plan as required by the clause at 552.239-1, Security Requirements for Unclassified Information Technology Resources.

Section 508 Compliance Requirements - Unless the Government invokes an exemption, all Electronic and Information Technology (EIT) products and services proposed shall fully comply with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, per the 1998 Amendments, U.S.C. 794d, and the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board’s Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards at 36 CFR 1194.  The contractor shall state, in the Offeror’s transmittal letter, the degree of compliance with Section 508 applicable standards for all EIT products and services proposed.
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	TOR
	Attachment A
Section 3.3.1

	Probe & Response Guide
	Section 3.3.1 Desired Outcomes # 3 states:
Acquire Probe & Response guide from service provider organization.  Question:
1.	Does such a guide exist today and what information does it contain and in how much detail?
2.	Can the current version of the guide be made available to GTO bidders?
	The Probe & Response requirement has been eliminated from Section 3.3.1.
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	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.5
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	We assume that the certification requirements for Lead Hardware Program Manager for ITIL v3 Expert can be fulfilled within six months of contract start, is this correct?
	Yes. TOR Section H.2 states “All Key Personnel require Project Management Institute (PMI) certification as Project Management Professionals (PMP), and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. Key personnel with the exception of the Task Order Program Manager will have 6 months post award to provide documentation of ITIL Foundation Certification and 12 months post award to provide documentation of PMP certification.” 
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	TOR
	L.9.3.2.2
	Instructions to Offerors
	“Each Key Personnel Qualification matrix shall be limited to 2 pages.”   Question: Would the government allow the offeror to modify the Personnel Qualification Matrix format to better utilize the space within the 2 page limitation as long as all the of the information is quantified and presented as required?
	Yes.  
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	PWS
	10.3
	EITM
Service-Now
	Can you share the roll out schedule for Service-Now?
	The Incident Management tool was implemented on March 1, 2012 and will be deployed on July 1 & Nov 1, 2012.
The following tools are scheduled for implementation on August 31, 2012 and Deployment on November 1, 2012:
Service Catalog, Asset Management, Change Management, Problem Management, and CMDB (Mid-Server Installation).
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	PWS
	10.3
	EITM
Service-Now
	As part of the transition to Service-Now environment, does the Government intend to transition/transfer all of the historic data?
	No.
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	PWS
	10.3
	EITM
Service-Now
	a. Is the Government still on track to complete the transition by Dec 2012? 
b. What is the current status of this transition?
	a. The implementation is on schedule to transition by November 2012.  
b. The Incident Management tool was implemented on March 1, 2012 and will be deployed on July 1 & Nov 1, 2012. The following tools are scheduled for implementation on August 31, 2012 and Deployment on November 1, 2012:
Service Catalog, Asset Management, Change Management, Problem Management, and CMDB (Mid-Server Installation).
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	PWS
	3.1
	EITM
CA Unicenter
	Is the plan still to stay with CA Unicenter IT Client Management (CA ITCM) and Network and Systems Management (CA NSM) applications under the EITM ‘To-Be’ state?
	Yes.
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	PWS
	3.1
	EITM Service-Now
	a. Can we be provided a description of the functionality of the GTO Contractor as a user of Service-Now? 
b. How our “account” is managed, bounded, updated, etc.?
	a. GTO ServiceNow administrator can configure the system in many different ways to address an organization's business needs. They can install and set up any number of the process applications that are provided with ServiceNow and also create custom applications. The primary administrator role (admin) has access to all system features, functions, and data, regardless of security constraints.  The GTO ServiceNow Administration duties will include, but not limited to are the following:
· Core Configuration: Administer forms, lists, and other elements; configure the UI, and more.
· User Administration: Manage user accounts, groups, and roles.
· Security: Control system access and data security.
· Workflow: Automate multi-step processes and progress through set actions based on conditions. 
· [bookmark: _GoBack]Managing Data: Use the UI to administer tables, fields, relationships, and metadata.
· Service Administration: Configure guided procedures, reports, alerts, approval rules, and social IT.
· Content Management: Create custom pages and extend the look and feel of the UI.
· GTO IT User: The IT user (itil) can perform standard actions for an IT service desk technician. 

b. The GTO Service-Now Administrator will be responsible for managing/updating all account in Service-Now. 
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	TOR Amendment_02
	L.9.1
	Instructions to Offerors
	The Amendment 02 document states that the Part 2 proposal at due at 9:00am on June 11, 2012 and the TOR states that they are due at 3:00pm on June 11, 2012.  Can you please confirm the time?
	Submissions must be received by 3:00 PM Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) Monday June 11, 2012.
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